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The Johnston/Muff house is a 2^-story Queen Anne structure located 
on the crest of a hill in east Crete.

The exterior of the house is dominated by a 2%-story tower on the 
south side of the house and a 2-story bay on the west (front). A frontal 
porch occupies the space adjacent to the 2-story bay. It is of frame 
construction, enclosed by a spindle-work railing. Atop this first-floor 
porch is a second-story covered walk-out surrounded by balusters and 
columns which match the lower porch.

In typical Queen Anne fashion, there were a variety of materials 
used in the construction of this house. The first story exterior is stone 
trimmed with brick, the second story is brick with some stone trim, and 
the gable areas are frame with patterned shingles.

Interesting decorative features of the house are the large finials 
located on the roof at the gable peaks and on top of the tower. There 
are also two large arched windows and several stained and leaded glass 
windows adding to the character of the house.

The interior of the house was converted to apartments in 1938 by the 
present owners, who have lived there for all but two of their seventy-two 
years of marriage. (Mrs. Algermissen is a daughter of Catherine Muff, 
the second owner of the house.) Except for the necessary partitioning, 
the home remains in close-to-original condition. The woodwork and open 
stairway have never been painted, and the six Italian marble fireplaces 
are in excellent repair. The slate roof is in perfect condition.

The grounds around the home still retain their historic integrity 
even though most of the original 15 acres have been sold through the years, 
Mature trees and a large expanse of grass surround the house, which is 
set back from the street.
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In 1870 John R. Johnston, a native of Canada, arrived in Nebraska 
and homesteaded in Saline County near the site of the future town of 
Crete. When the railroad company platted Crete in 1871, Johnston became 
an avid supporter of the new community. He was appointed postmaster of 
Crete in November of 1871 and built several commercial buildings for 
rental purposes. Johnston formed a partnership in the Crete Mills in 
1875 with his father-in-law, G. W. Bridges, an endeavor which lasted 
until 1882 when Johnston sold his interest to C. C. White and apparently 
moved to California for a few years. Returning to Crete about 1885, he 
joined the Crete State Bank. In May of 1885, J. R. Johnston bought a 
15-acre parcel of land which at that time was just outside the eastern 
boundary of the city limits. He began to build what the local newspaper 
described as "one of the pleasantest half village and half rustic homes 
that can be found in Nebraska." By November his large horse barn was 
completed, a building which is no longer extant.

J. R. Johnston had very progressive ideas for his estate. In 
November of 1885, he built an 800-barrel water reservoir on his land 
for fire prevention. He suggested at that time that it would not be too 
costly to enlarge the facility and run a pipe down the hill west to the 
Crete business district for the same purpose.

In the summer and fall of 1886, he led a fund-raising drive for the 
improvement of Boswell Avenue, the street which fronts the house on the 
west. His proposal was to grade that street and improve it to a quality 
constituting a thoroughfare.

By July 5, 1888, the State Vidette newspaper of Crete commented 
that the Johnston residence was "getting far enough along to give a 
person an idea that it is destined to be the finest building in the city 
when completed." Later that month, the newspaper reported that one of 
the contractors for the house went to Omaha to purchase electric appliances 
for the residence, which was nearly ready for occupancy.
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In May of 1892, Johnston sold out his interest in the Crete State 
Bank and in November of that year sold his residence to Mrs. Catherine 
Muff.

Catherine Hier Muff, a native of Prussia, came with her parents to 
Nebraska in 1870. In July 1871, she married Joseph Muff, a Swiss immigrant, 
in Seward. The Muffs lived in Lincoln during their first year of marriage, 
where Mr. Muff had a contract to raise hay for the first Nebraska State 
Fair. In 1872, they moved to Crete and founded an ice business which Mr. 
Muff operated for nearly twenty years. Other business endeavors of the 
Muffs were real estate and restaurant, bakery and meat market investments. 
Mr. Muff also owned half interest in the Western Brewing Company of Crete.

Joseph and Catherine Muff were staunch Catholics. They contributed 
in 1879 to the purchase of 40 acres of land west of Crete for use as a 
Catholic cemetery, and in 1887 donated a vacant block in Crete to the 
St. James Parish for the erection of a Catholic church and school.

•^i'

When Joseph Muff died suddenly in 1891, his wife Catherine continued 
to successfully manage the family's business affairs. She acquired more 
farm land and built several commercial buildings in the downtown area for 
rental purposes.

Mrs. Muff bought the Johnston mansion on October 17, 1892, for 
$20,000 and moved there with her family. In the Lewis Publishing Co.'s 
Biographical and Genealogical History of Southeastern Nebraska, 1904, 
there is a descriptive account of Mrs. Muff's home: "Her present residence 
is one of the finest in this part of Nebraska, being a very extensive and 
palatial residence, built of brick and stone. It is situated in one of 
the most desirable residence portions of the city and contains eighteen 
rooms, supplied with every modern convenience. It occupies a fine building 
site, commanding a splendid view of the town and the farming districts 
to the northwest and south of the city. The house is surrounded by 
beautiful and well-kept lawns, shaded with ornamental trees, while upon 
the place is an orchard of five acres. The grounds cover altogether, 
fifteen acres, and most effective effort has been put forth to benefit the 
home which in its furnishings indicates the cultured and refined taste of 
the inmates."
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Architecturally, the house is a rather unique example of the Queen 
Anne style. While employing the usual variety in building materials and 
roof lines, this particular structure has a side tower rather than the 
typical corner tower found on most Queen Anne houses in the area. This 
style was a most popular one in the eastern half of Nebraska in the late 
1880 f s and through the 1890's. Built at a time when the town of Crete 
and this portion of the state as a whole were enjoying a boom period, it 
is a fine, well-preserved example of the style.
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